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The Hamilton Richardson house is an exceptionally fine cream brick structure with 
relatively little alteration to its extravangantly detailed exterior. Two stories 
in height, with bullseye-windowed attics, the intersecting masses of its multiple 
wings are those of an Italian villa, with ovoid openings played against quadrangular 
blocks. A glass-covered skylight remains near the center of the house; it is visible 
from a second story landing on the east side.

The front and rear block roofs are hipped, while the projecting wings have gabled 
roofs, ending in broken pediments. These gables cover a block which projects slightly 
as an extension on the right side of the entrance block, and also a wing projecting 
to the left, or west, of the entrance.

Three-sided one-story bays project from both gable-fronted faces of the building, to 
the left and right of the veranda and entrance porch. The handsome arched and 
bracketed one-story veranda, supported on slender wooden piers, nestles across the 
left front. Its spandrels are pierced with intricate jigsaw patterns. The entrance 
is fronted with a fantastic porch which is framed by a pair of foliated wooden "C" 
scrolls which descend all the way to the porch floor. These are terminated above by 
acorn pendants and end in curled carved scrolls. The porch protects a round-arched 
double door, ornately moulded with round ovoid panels and with teardrop-shaped lights. 
The door is framed by a multi-banded archivolt and pilasters.

Round- and elliptic ally-arched windows are used throughout the house, including most 
of the basement windows (except for a few smaller windows at the rear, a few later 
bathroom windows, and four windows on the second story of the east side, which were 
added or altered when the building was converted to apartments) . The arched windows 
are framed by brick mouldings. Keystones and sills are of cut stone. Foundations 
also are of cut limestone. The full basement is divided by brick walls into several 
rooms; some of the brick walls may continue through the upper stories of the house. 
In the laundry room there are still "Eclipse" gas burners made in Rockford, Illinois, 
and porcelain wash tubs, with wooden stanchions.

The basic structure of the interior is still visible including the high (about eleven 
feet) parlor and hall ceilings, which have been replastered. Still intact are fine 
woodwork and paneled doors, some with etched glass; several marble grates; a fin£ 
balustrade; and the skylight with a colored glass five-sided star. Ceilings have 
been lowered in the rear bedroom and kitchen on the ground story, and these rooms 
are greatly altered.

Wooden balustrades have been removed from the roofs of the entrance porch, the 
one-storied bays, and the front central portion of the roof. Possibly a tower, or 
some portion of a tower, was removed from over the skylight.

A two-story addition about ten feet deep was added to the rear, over rock-textured 
concrete blocks, presumably about 1910. This created additional kitchen and storage 
space on the first floor and a porch on the second story. The more recent change 
to apartments necessitated an outside stairway to the second story on the east side,
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and window alterations (see above). These changes and additions do not materially 
detract from the high quality of the house.

The building is basically sound, although maintenance has been neglected in recent 
years. The fine woodwork of the entrance porch is deteriorating due to patchy 
paint; downspouts are not in place, so water leaks down the brick walls and 
seeps into the edges of the basement; and the wooden eaves need repainting.
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in 1856 as a hardware dealer, boarding at the Hyatt House. In 1858 he married 
Caroline Pease (d. 1912), sister of John Pease, an early Janesville landowner 
and speculator (who had established Pease's Addition, in which the house was 
built). The couple left for Europe, and "after returning from their extensive 
honeymoon, the husband erected the elegant mansion now their home.' A polygonal 
lot was purchased in January 1861 from James Crosby. It consisted of a full 
block bordered by the present Prospect Street, then called Second Street (313.5 feet 
wide), by Cornelia Street (418.5 feet wide), Caroline Street (307 feet wide), and 
by the present Centerway Avenue, then called Ann and later Fourth Street (264 feet 
wide). Even now the present lot on which the house is situated fronts the full 
width of Prospect and extends 343.3 feet north on Caroline. (Caroline Street may 
have been named after Caroline Pease Richardson.)

The house, however, apparently was not built immediately, but after the couple's 
second European trip in 1873. Richardson was elected to the State Legislature 
in 1864 and during the Civil War years was listed as residing at the southwest 
corner of Franklin and Van Buren (School) Streets. After becoming a county 
commissioner in 1868, he resided at 43 Court Street. By the time that the family 
was listed as living in the present house, 1874, Richardson was secretary and 
treasurer as well as the largest stockholder of Doty Mfg. Company, manufacturer 
of "Doty Punching and Shearing Machinery, Badger State Grain Drills and Broadcast 
Seeders," and other machinery and castings.

A state senator from 1876 to 1882, Richardson promoted humane care for the insane, 
as chairman of the committee on Charitable and Penal Institutions in Wisconsin. 
From 1883-1888 he served as Janesville's postmaster.

Of his six children who grew up in the house, the most famous locally were Victor 
Pease Richardson (1859-ca.l940), who became president of New Doty Mfg. and twice 
mayor of Janesville (1900, 1904), and Lorrain Richardson (1871-1930), a West Point 
graduate and colonel in the U.S. Army during World War I, twice decorated for 
bravery.

Janesville was the second largest city in Wisconsin shortly before the Civil 
War and retains what may be the largest concentration of mid-nineteenth-century 
buildings in the state. Hamilton Richardson's house is located at the periphery 
of one of several large potential National Register districts in Janesville. The 
architectural reputation of the house has been overshadowed by other better-known 
and more visible landmarks, including the Tallman House.
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The Richardson house is vulnerable to redevelopment because of the large size 
of the property and its convenient proximity to center-city Janesville (two 
large new apartment projects have recently been proposed within a three-block 
radius). It is hoped that National Register status will encourage the upgrading 
of the present house and its neighbors and encourage potential redevelopment of 
the vacant land (if necessary) in a manner which will not materially detract from 
the Richardson house itself.

1. Janesville City Directory, 1874-5, p. 120.
2. Janesville City Directory, 1878-9. p. 111.
3. Portrait and Biographical Album of Rock County, 1889, p. 949.
4. Rock County Register of Deeds Office.
5. Rock County Directory, 1862, p. 52; Janesville Directory, 1866, p. 

On that corner, now 202 South Franklin, is a simple cream brick 
Italianate house.

6. Janesville Directory, 1870-1, p. 121.
7. Atlas, 1873, p. 77.
8. Portrait and Biographical Album of Rock County, 1889, p. 949.
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The significance of the Hamilton Richardson house lies primarily in its architectural 
quality as one of Janesville's outstanding Italianate houses and secondarily in the 
locally historic importance of its builder, a prominent Janesville businessman, 
county commissioner, and state senator.

Architecture:
The house is an elegant cream brick Italianate mansion with relatively little altera­ 
tion to its exterior and with interior remodeling which retains much of the basic 
proportions and woodwork. It is one of Janesville's finest Italianate houses, and 
the latest in that style. Its ornate front entrance porch, framed with "C" shaped 
scrolls, is unique in southern Wisconsin.

The ornateness of the wood detailing has given rise to speculation that the builder, 
or at least the master craftsman responsible for the woodwork, was Ellis Shopbell. 
Shopbell was listed by 1870 as a carpenter, contractor and builder. By 1876 he had 
formed a partnership with Button Norris as "Shopbell and Norris, Contractors and 
Builders, doors, blinds, mouldings, brackets, etc."^

These were the years in which the Richardson house presumably was constructed. In 
1869 Shopbell had acquired the house now known as 252 South Franklin, and took out 
a mortgage for over $3,000.00. It is believed that his Franklin Street house then 
took its present form, including elaborate foliated window mouldings, saw-tooth 
porch detailing and the only other recorded pair of "tear-drop" double door windows 
in Janesville.

The Richardson house was built on an entire city block, which it still dominates and 
whose front portion with its trees and bushes' and rare brick driveway is still 
unadulterated by later houses.

History;
Hamilton Richardson (1820-1906), the builder of the house, was born in Genesee County, 
New York, of Scottish, English and "Mohawk Holland" ancestry. His paternal grand­ 
father, William Richardson, was aide-de-camp to General Putnam in the American 
Revolution.

In 1842 Richardson came to Milwaukee, then to Racine in 1844 and finally to Janesville 
in 1846. Here he was a co-erector of the Excelsior Mills in 1850, which was later 
destroyed by fire and flood. After a stint in California (1851) as a supplier of 
mountain traders and as a secretary with a river steamer firm, he returned to Janesville
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